
MUNICIPAL SERVICES, FACILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
Council Chambers B, Keene City Hall

January 26, 2022
6:00 PM

  
A. AGENDA ITEMS
 1. Kevin Leary - Access to Property 218-009-000-000 through the Old 

Gilsum Road
 2. Use of the Old Gilsum Road - Public Works Director/ACM
 3. Relocation of Woodard Pond Road - City Attorney
 4. REPORT OUT - Maintenance of the Wilson Pond Dam  
 5. REPORT OUT - Monica Marshall – Request that Main Street be 

Designated as a Smoke-Free Zone
  
B. MORE TIME ITEMS
  
 NON PUBLIC SESSION
  
 ADJOURNMENT
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CITY OF KEENE
NEW HAMPSHIRE

ITEM #A.1.

   
Meeting Date: January 26, 2022
  

To: Mayor and Keene City Council
  

From: Kevin Leary
  

Through: Patricia Little, City Clerk
  

Subject: Kevin Leary - Access to Property 218-009-000-000 through the Old Gilsum 
Road

  
 
Council Action:
In City Council January 6, 2022.
Referred to the Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee.
 
Recommendation:
 
Attachments:
1. Communication_Leary
 
Background:
Kevin Leary is submitting a request to access the Fontaine property (TMP 218-009-000-000) through 
the Old Gilsum Road.  
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CITY OF KEENE
NEW HAMPSHIRE

ITEM #A.2.

   
Meeting Date: January 26, 2022
  

To: Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee
  

From: Kurt Blomquist, ACM/Public Works Director
  

Through: Elizabeth Dragon, City Manager
  

Subject: Use of the Old Gilsum Road - Public Works Director/ACM
  
 
Recommendation:

 The Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommend per Section 94-238 of 
the City Code of Ordinances, that Kevin Leary, of 27 Meetinghouse Road, Keene, NH, be permitted 
to use motorized vehicles on the Class VI portion of the Old Gilsum Road for the purpose of 
accessing and transporting in and out equipment up to four (4) times per year until 2023 to the 
Fontaine Albert R Revocable Trust Property (218-09-00-000-000).  This motorized access to be 
coordinated with City staff with Mr. Leary abiding by all conditions set by staff.
 
Attachments:
1. Map Leary Old Gilsum Rd Request
2. Leary Feb 2021 Request
3. MSFI Feb 24 21 minutes
4. MSFI Mar 10 21 minutes
5. Leary Apr 9 21 request
6. City Council Apr 21 21 action
7. City Council May 6 21 action
 
 
Background:
The Old Gilsum Road is a Class VI Highway closed in 1980 subject to gates and bars.  Further, the 
City Council added conditions to the closing.  These conditions included restricting vehicle access 
unless granted permission by the City Council and that the owners of property abutting on Old 
Gilsum Road shall not be prohibited from using the right-of-way for the purpose of gaining access to 
their respective properties, City Code Section 94-238.
 
 Mr. Kevin Leary in February 2021 sought permission to use the Old Gilsum Road to take equipment 
to the Fontaine Property, Parcel# 218-009-000-000, for the purpose of performing work on the 
property.  The Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee (MSFI) reviewed this 
request at their February 24, 2021 meeting.
 
 During the discussions at the February 24, 2021 MSFI meeting, Mr. Leary brought up a request to 
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also look at the use of a utility access that goes to the City’s water tank and the City property that 
abuts the Fontaine property.  The Committee heard from representatives of the Drummer Hill Home 
Owners Association and several residents who expressed concern of use of the Old Gilsum Road by 
motorized vehicles and conflicts with walkers, runners, and bicyclists.  The Committee placed the 
item on more time for staff to work with the requestor.
 
 The MSFI Committee continued its review of Mr. Leary Request at its March 10, 2021 
meeting.  During the discussion, the use of the water tank access road and crossing City property 
came up.  The City’s property was under a conservation easement, The Greater Goose Pond Forest 
Conservation Easement, that had been previously signed by the City Council in 2009.  The staff did 
not know at that time whether the easement would permit the uses that Mr. Leary was 
requesting.  Further, the utility access to the City’s water tank crossed land owned by the Drummer 
Hill Home Owners Association through an easement and staff did not know at that time whether the 
City could give permission for use other than maintenance, repair, and construction of water 
infrastructure without concurrence from the Home Owners Association.  The MSFI Committee placed 
the item on more time to have staff review the new request.
 
 The MSFI Committee continued its review of Mr. Leary request at its March 24, 2021 
meeting.  During the meeting, it was reported that the use of the utility easement and the City 
property by motorized equipment to access the Fontaine property would not be a use contemplated 
by the easements.  During the discussion, comments were made about a lease of the Fontaine 
land.  There was also discussion on forestry type work, creating better habitat, etc., which was 
different from earlier discussions.  The Committee became concerned that during the discussions on 
Mr. Leary request information kept changing.  The Committee advised Mr. Leary to withdraw his 
original request and resubmit a request on what he wishes to do.
 Mr. Leary submitted a request on April 9, 2021 for access to the Fontaine Property, Parcel #281-
009-000-000, and in the request he indicated that he had a lease for the property providing 
permission access, that he would be using the Class VI portion of the Old Gilsum Road, and would 
be accessing 2 – 3 times a year with motorized equipment.  The MSFI Committee reviewed this 
request at its April 21, 2021 meeting.  The Committee found that Mr. Leary’s request met the 
conditions set out in Section 94-238 of the City code and recommended that Mr. Leary be permitted 
to use a motorized vehicle on the Class VI portion of the Old Gilsum Road for the purpose of 
transporting in and out of equipment one time each year until 2023 to the Fontaine Albert R 
Revocable Trust Property (Parcel #2180009-00-000-00).  The City Council concurred with the 
recommendation on May 6, 2021.
 
 Mr. Kevin Leary has submitted a request, December 22, 2021, to change the number of access to 
the Fontaine Property over the Class VI portion of the Old Gilsum Road  from one time each year to 
four times each year through 2023.
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CITY OF KEENE
NEW HAMPSHIRE

ITEM #A.3.

   
Meeting Date: January 26, 2022
  

To: Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee
  

From: Thomas Mullins, City Attorney
  

Through:
  

Subject: Relocation of Woodard Pond Road - City Attorney
  
 
Recommendation:
Move that the Municipal Service, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee recommend that the City 
Manager be authorized to do all things necessary to negotiate and execute an Easement Deed with 
the Town of Roxbury for the relocation of Woodward Pond Road across City-owned property in 
Roxbury, New Hampshire.
 
Attachments:
None 
 
Background:
During the 2020 and 2021 construction seasons, the City completed a major reconstruction of the 
Woodward Pond Dam in Roxbury.  The dam is one of two dams that the City owns in the Roaring 
Brook watershed and is a key component of our surface water supply system.

The reconstruction work included changing the slope of the downstream face of the dam.  This in turn 
impacted the alignment of a Class VI road that historically ran along the toe of the dam.  In order to 
facilitate the City's upgrade of the dam, the Town of Roxbury approved a warrant article on March 10, 
2020, to amend the layout of the existing roadway.  The modified road now runs along the crest of 
the dam.

The City owns the property over which the new layout passes.  Therefore, the City must grant the 
Town an easement for highway purposes in order to complete and record the layout amendment 
process.  
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